

110 N. Poplar Street • PO Box 218 • West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319) 643-5888 • Fax (319) 643-2305 • www.westbranchiowa.org • city@westbranchiowa.org

WEST BRANCH ANIMAL CONTROL COMMISSION MEETING Tuesday, March 9, 2021 • 6:30 p.m. West Branch City Council Chambers, 110 N. Poplar St.

Council Quorum May Be Present

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Approve minutes from the January 12, 2021 Animal Control Commission Meetings. / Move to action.
- 4. Old Business
 - a. License Renewal options
 - b. Animal Control budget
 - c. TNR program
 - d. Other old business
- 5. New Business
 - a. Dog Park rules and other issues Melissa Russell
 - b. Police Report
 - c. Dog Park tether ball
 - d. Other new business
- 6. Next meeting date April 13, 2021
- 7. Adjourn

Please wear a mask and social distance

Commission Members: Chair Alan Beyer, DVM, Leesa Johnson, Amy Lynch, Ashley Olson, Gina Heick Mayor: Roger Laughlin · Council Members: Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman, Jerry Sexton, Tom Dean City Administrator/Clerk: Redmond Jones II · Fire Chief: Kevin Stoolman · Library Director: Nick Shimmin Parks & Rec Director: Melissa Russell · Police Chief: John Hanna · Public Works Director: Matt Goodale The West Branch Animal Control Commission met on January 12, 2021 at 6:30 p.m.

Roll Call: Present: Alan Beyer, Amy Lynch, Leesa Johnson, Ashley Olson and Gina Heick. Absent: None

Also present was City Administrator, Redmond Jones, Deputy City Clerk, Leslie Brick, Officer Zach Murdock and TNR Representative, Ashley Carroll.

Minutes from the November 10, 2020 meeting were approved.

Old Business:

Alan stated that the TNR Program has been in affect since April, 2020, with the understanding of trying it for a year to see how it goes and then giving City Counsel a recommendation that we would like to do it again and that we've got money in our budget.

Ashley Carroll, representing the TNR program, presented us with some statistics on the program: 27 cats have been taken care of in some way.

13 kittens were rescued.

2 adult cats were relocated to a barn.

2 cats are in foster care.

10 or 11 cats have been thru TNR. Those cats came from the areas of Beranek Park, 5th & Main Streets, Pedersen Street and Cookson Drive (near the West Branch Family Practice building). Alan: It's a little different than what we expected. We thought there would be colonies. A group of cats would be TNR'd and then later on another group of cats, and so on.

Ashley: With an understanding that they cannot take a whole group of cats to the West Branch Animal Clinic all at once.

Alan: Would be a good idea to call ahead and see if they have time.

Ashley wondered if IHA (Iowa Human Alliance) could be a second option. Alan said absolutely. Ashley questioned how the billing would work, believing that it was \$55.00. Leslie stated it would be best to bill the City.

Alan said the Animal Clinic is Okay with continuing to participate, however, City Council has to approve it if we are going to renew, as TNR was entered into as a trial program. Leslie stated we may possibly know by the next Animal Control Commission meeting. She will report back.

Alan stated that an Ordinance was passed last year to allow people to renew city license up to three years (couldn't exceed their Rabies expiration date), thinking this would make it easier, but it did not. Deputy City Clerk, Leslie Brick, spoke to the commission regarding improving the efficiency of Pet Licensing. The on-line ability to register pets has been going very well. They may also pay for fees on-line and register and pay fees for the Dog Park. Last year with the multi-registration, we also offered a Forever Tag. It has been very helpful, the challenge still is registering their rabies shots because many of them don't seem to remember when that happens. They don't remember when they were registered and don't remember when their rabies expire. They are always expecting that reminder. Chief Hanna would like to make some recommendations. We are thinking about along with the forever tag, have a forever registration and make fee appropriate to that. There would be one record for life until the pet passes away and we take that pet off our records or when they get a new pet, registering that new pet. This would eliminate constantly sending out post cards, and the expense to the city for time and postage each year.

Amy: What does pet registration help?

Leslie: Have received calls regarding dog bites, wondering if the pet has had its rabies vaccination. Her information is only as good as she has it, as she cannot make people give it to her. The vet should be their first call anyway, as her records are sometimes not helpful. She does

not see a big value in the time it takes. Up until a year ago, we didn't have any way to access information. Leslie has created a Google spreadsheet, allowing the Police Department to access it on weekends and evenings. She mentioned that microchipping is a quick and easy way to find out about the pet. They are exploring additional ideas. Chief Hanna may attend the next meeting to address concerns he had. He will also review the Codes, hoping to keep them updated.

Leslie stated that they have held off on the fee increases until we can have another discussion and decide about the registration.

Leslie noted a discrepancy in the West Branch Animal Commission Annual Report regarding Dog Park fee to remain at \$15.00 a year (not \$20.00). Gina to correct and turn in a corrected copy.

Amy: As far as licensing the pet, is it really a benefit or something we should just drop? Alan: It does give some leverage in our Ordinance for dog bites, so there's some value there. Agreed by Officer Murdock.

Alan: Telling pet owners they have a responsibility to their pet and it's in an Ordinance. Amy: Does the value outweigh the extra time it takes?

Alan: Dealing with an animal that has bitten or attacked another dog, that without it, it might be difficult.

Leslie: Do the fines go thru the Court because she has not had to bill anyone.

Alan: Yes, fines go thru Court and it has happened several times. Officer Murdock confirmed.

Old Business:

The commission voted Alan Beyer as Chairperson, Amy Lynch as Vice-Chairperson and Gina Heick as Secretary.

Officer Zach Murdock reported no dog bites or animal complaints since he last reported to us at the November 10, 2020 meeting.

Alan mentioned that there is furniture in the shed at the Dog Park. Asked if any members had a problem with that. None did. Leslie suggested putting a bench around the perimeter of the inside, making it permanent and economical. Commission agreed and thought it would make a good project for a Scout.

Amy reported the security light is out at the Dog Park. Alan to get in touch with Alliant Energy to replace. Alan asked Redmond if he had any comments on the Budget. Redmond stated there was an incident of an owner not taking care of 16 cats. It was overloading our West Branch animal services, so the cats were taken to Tipton. We received a bill from Tipton for \$808.00. Redmond said that Chief Hanna will give a detailed report at our next meeting. There is not an agreement, so we need to re-evaluate in case we run into this situation again.

Alan asked if we should do an article in the West Branch Times outlining Winter Pet Care. Food, water and shelter is standard, but the problem is dogs licking their paws and getting salt/ice melts in their system. Amy agreed to write. Leslie offered to put it on the City website and on Facebook.

Next meeting is February 9, 2021.

Meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.

RESOLUTION 1887

RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A TRAP, NEUTER, AND RELEASE FERAL CATS PILOT PROGRAM WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS.

WHEREAS, The trap-neuter-return (TNR) is a management technique in which community cats are humanely trapped, evaluated, spayed or neutered by a licensed veterinarian, ear-tipped to show they've been sterilized, vaccinated against rabies and distemper,* and then returned to their original habitat.

WHEREAS, the West Branch Animal Control Commission, would like to investigate and test TNR as a potential effective management tool for controlling feral cat population in West Branch; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Alan Beyers a retired trained professional veterinarian will be collecting data and coordinating this program; and

WHEREAS, the program is to be evaluated annually and is subject to cancellation at any time; and

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council hereby approves a temporary exemption for TNR cats from current prohibition at large or stray animal ordinance.

Passed and approved this 6th day of April, 2020.

aughlin Mayor

ATTEST

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk

West Branch Dog Park Rules

For the safety and enjoyment of all dogs and their human companions, please read and abide by these rules.

Upon arrival at the park, don't congregate with your dogs at the entryway or gates to allow easy entry/exit of all visitors.

All Dogs must....

Be fully vaccinated for rabies. Display a permit for use of the park. Be accompanied by a responsible person at least 16 years old. Be on leash when entering or exiting the off-leash area*. *off-leash area is only the fenced area, not the parking lot or surrounding areas. Be under the handler's visual contact and voice control at all times.

The following dogs are not allowed in the park....

Vicious, dangerous or aggressive dogs. Dogs with communicable diseases. Dogs in heat.

Dog handlers must....

Clean up after their dogs using the black, biodegradable bags available at the park. All dog waste should be deposited in garbage cans at the park entry area.

Carry a leash for each dog in the park.

Discourage dog(s) from excessive barking and any dominating behavior such as staring, humping and/or bullying.

Stop dog(s) from digging and fill any holes made by their dog (s).

Be responsible for actions and behavior of their dog(s) at all times

Remove pinch, choke or spike collars prior to entering the park. (This is a safety issue as dogs can be injured by such collars when playing).

Not have more than two dogs per handler in the park at one time

Children under the age of 16 must be accompanied and supervised by a responsible adult.

Wheeled devices, except wheel chairs or strollers, are not allowed; including skateboards, bicycles, wagons, or roller blades.

Smoking is prohibited within the fenced areas.

No food allowed in the park except for small training treats to prevent any bone of contention between dogs.

Users of the facility do so at their own risk.

Other park rules and ordinances may apply.

Violations should be reported to West Branch City Offices **319-643-5888**

Non-Emergency Contact 563-886-2121

Emergency 9-1-1